
 

 

 

 

 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

AGENDA PACKET 

 
Regular Board Meeting  

Wednesday, April 17, 2019 

 

7:00 P.M. Regular Board Meeting 

 
Community Center 

1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY  

A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

      President – Bill Mayer • Vice-President – Bill Pease • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Bryon Gutow 



 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 
Meeting Agenda for April 17, 2019 - Pg.1 

 

          
 

 
 
 
NOTICE OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
Wednesday April 17, 2019 
REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M. 
Community Center 
1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard, Discovery Bay, California 
Website address: www.todb.ca.gov 
 
REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M. 
A. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

1. Call business meeting to order 7:00 p.m. 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Roll Call. 
  

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit) 
During Public Comments, the public may address the Board on any issue within the District’s jurisdiction 
which is not on the Agenda. The public may comment on any item on the Agenda at the time the item is 
before the Board for consideration by filling out a comment form. The public will be called to comment in the 
order the comment forms are received.  Any person wishing to speak must come up and speak from the 
podium and will have 3 minutes to make their comment.  There is a device on the podium with a green, 
yellow, and red light.  The yellow light will come on 30 seconds before the end of the 3 minutes. There will be 
no dialog between the Board and the commenter as the law strictly limits the ability of Board members to 
discuss matters not on the agenda.  We ask that you refrain from personal attacks during comment, and that 
you address all comments to the Board only.  Any clarifying questions from the Board must go through the 
President.  Comments from the public do not necessarily reflect the view point of the Directors. 
 

C. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters listed under the CONSENT CALENDAR are considered by the District to be routine and will be 
enacted by one motion. 
1. Approve DRAFT minutes of regular meeting for April 3, 2019. 
2. Approve Register of District Invoices. 
3. Accept Draft Annual Water Quality Report/Consumer Confidence Report - Reporting year 2018.  
4. Approve Board President to Sign and Submit a Letter of Opposition to Senate Bill 13. 
5. Adopt and Present Proclamation 19-01 Thanking and Honoring Virgil Koehne for his 20 Years of 

Dedicated Service to the Town of Discovery Bay.   
 

D. PRESENTATIONS 
 

E. MONTHLY WATER AND WASTEWATER REPORT – VEOLIA 
1. Veolia Report – Month of March. 
 

F. BUSINESS AND ACTION ITEMS 
1. Discussion and Possible Action to Accept Audited Financial Statements for FY 2017-18. 

 
G.  INFORMATIONAL ITEMS ONLY 
 
 
 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

 

President – Bill Mayer • Vice-President – Bill Pease • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Bryon Gutow 
 

 

SDLF Gold-Level of Governance 

http://www.todb.ca.gov/


 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 
Meeting Agenda for April 17, 2019 - Pg.2 

 

H. DIRECTORS’ REPORTS 
1. Standing Committee Reports. 

a. Parks and Recreation Committee Meeting (Committee Members Kevin Graves and Bryon Gutow) 
April 17, 2019. 

2. Other Reportable Items. 
 
I. MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
J. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

1. Envision Contra Costa 2040 Project - Contra Costa County General Plan and Zoning Code Update. 
2. GSA Update. 

 
K. CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED 

1. Received – Contra Costa County Aviation Advisory Committee meeting minutes for February 14, 2019. 
2. Received – Contra Costa County Aviation Advisory Committee meeting minutes for March 14, 2019. 
3. Received – Discovery Bay P6 Citizen Advisory Committee meeting minutes for January 9, 2019. 
4. Received – East Contra Costa Fire Protection District meeting minutes for March 13, 2019. 

 
L. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
  
M.  ADJOURNMENT     

1. Adjourn to the regular meeting on May 1, 2019 beginning at 7:00 p.m. at the Community Center located 
at 1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard.  
 

 
 
 
“This agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required 
by the American with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California 
Government Code § 54954.2). Persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to 
participate in the meeting should contact the Town of Discovery Bay, at (925) 634-1131, during regular business 
hours, at least forty-eight hours prior to the time of the meeting.” 
 
"Materials related to an item on the Agenda submitted to the Town of Discovery Bay after distribution of the 
agenda packet are available for public inspection in the District Office located at 1800 Willow Lake Road during 
normal business hours." 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 
Meeting Minutes for April 3, 2019 - Pg.1 

 

          
 

 
 

 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
Wednesday April 3, 2019 
REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M.  
Community Center 
1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard, Discovery Bay, California 
Website address: www.todb.ca.gov 
 
REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M. 
A. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

1. Call business meeting to order 7:00 p.m. – By President Mayer. 
2. Pledge of Allegiance – Led by Director Leete. 
3. Roll Call – All Present. 
  

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit) 
Public Comment Regarding: 

 Representing the Pickleball players; raising funds and request to the Board to consider funds for the 
Pickle Ball Courts. 

 Agenda Item C-4 Letter of Opposition to Assembly Bill 1486 and C-5 Letters of Support to ACA 1. 
 

C. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters listed under the CONSENT CALENDAR are considered by the District to be routine and will be 
enacted by one motion. 
1. Approve DRAFT minutes of regular meeting for March 20, 2019. 
2. Approve Register of District Invoices. 
3. Approve HERWIT Engineering to prepare the 2019-2020 Annual Assessment Report for the 

Ravenswood Improvement District, Discovery Bay Landscape & Lighting Zone #9 by Resolution No. 
2019-02. 

4. Approve the Board President to Sign and Submit a Letter of Opposition to Assembly Bill 1486. 
5. Approve the Board President to Sign and Submit Letters of Support to ACA 1. 
Motion by: Vice-President Pease to approve the Consent Calendar. 
Second by: Director Leete.  
Vote: Motion Carried – AYES: 5, NOES: 0 
 

D. AREA AGENCIES REPORTS / PRESENTATION 
1. Supervisor Diane Burgis, District III Report – Deputy Chief of Staff Lea Castleberry provided the details 

regarding the general plan, building codes, and the  General Plan Community meeting which will be 
held at the Community Center on Wednesday, April 24, 2019 at 6:00 p.m.  

2. Sheriff’s Office Report – Crime Prevention Specialists Fontenot– Provided the details of the Sheriff 
Report regarding the reported activity for the month; increase mail theft and fraud.  There was 
discussion regarding Park and Ride. 

3. CHP Report – Officer Thomas provided an update for the month of March; arrests, citations, and a task 
force formed (Officer Thomas, Oakley Police Department, Pittsburg Police Department, Antioch Police 
Department) will be in Discovery Bay next month, and update regarding license plates.  There was 
discussion regarding the dates for the Discovery Bay Task Force and Highway 4 and Discovery Bay 
Boulevard. 

4. East Contra Costa Fire Protection District Report – no report. 
 
E. LIAISON REPORTS 

None. 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

 
SDLF Gold-Level of Governance 

President – Bill Mayer • Vice-President – Bill Pease • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Bryon Gutow 
 

 

Agenda Item C-1

http://www.todb.ca.gov/


 
 

Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 
Meeting Minutes for April 3, 2019 - Pg.2 

 

F. PRESENTATIONS 
1. Croce, Sanguinetti, & Vander Veen – Financial Audit.  
Finance Manager Breitstein – Introduced audit representative Pauline Sanguinetti and also stated that the 
Financial Audit will be brought to the next meeting for adoption.  
Pauline Sanguinetti with Croce, Sanguinetti, & Vander Veen – Provided the details of the June 30 2018 - 
Draft Financial Statements; highlighted sections of the Financial Statements. 
Public Comment Regarding: 

 Prop 218, cash flow, Zone 8, and water/sewer cash flow. 
 

G. BUSINESS AND ACTION ITEMS 
1. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Eliminating or Refurbishing or Building a New Community 

Center Pool. 
General Manager Davies – Provided a presentation regarding the Community Center Pool; three options 
with estimated costs for a Small, Medium, or Large “L” Shape 6 Lane Competitive Pool, recommendations 
from Parks and Recreation and Finance Committees, along with alternatives; eliminate the pool, refurbish 
the pool, or build a new pool. 
Public Comments Regarding: 

 Support of a larger pool; for recreational purposes and for the River Otters. 

 Support of a larger pool; future investment, serves many residents, and opportunity for decades. 

 Support of a larger pool; great opportunity for the community, and the swim team. 

 Support of a larger pool; starting the River Otter Team, local volunteering, and make Discovery Bay 
a better place. 

 Refurbish the pool; estimates/bids for a larger pool, extra revenue and costs, Hofmann funds to be 
used for other things; landscaping, Community Center, parks, and tennis courts. 

 Not in support of a larger pool; current revenue, possible increase with a new pool, if no revenue 
increase will the deficit come from resident tax money. 

 Refurbish the pool; maintain what the Town already has; current issues with assets, funding for other 
assets (budget for either a new pool or other assets).   

 Support of a larger pool; River Otters has brought families together, outgrown the pool, and a larger 
pool will be an investment for the community,  

 Support of a larger pool; benefit to the community, revenue and business increase. 

 Support of a larger pool; investment to our Community and help with home sales/property values. 

 Refurbishing the pool; spend funds in other areas; landscaping and park improvements (also voicing 
the opinion of those unable to attend). 

 Support of a larger pool; River Otters is family orientated  
There was discussion regarding the process of building a new pool and to proceed to the next step of 
evaluating cost; engineering design ($65,000 rough estimate), submit for RFP (may be other associated 
costs), wait for the bids to be returned, and bring back to the Board. Also, the Finance Committee has had 
discussions regarding the pool being an aquatic center. 
Motion by: Director Leete to recommend the approval of the process 3) Build New Pool, within the Staff 
Report and refer the matter to Staff and the Parks and Recreation Committee to develop a scope of work for 
design of the facility within the budget that is indicated in the Staff Report.  Once complete by Staff and the 
Parks and Recreation Committee what the facility might entail and precise cost, then return to the Board.   
Second by: President Mayer. 
There was discussion regarding the public comment related to the use of the entire Hofmann funds; retain 
some of the Hofmann funds for other areas, obtaining an RFP for a firm bid, and clarification of the motion. 
Motion by: Director Leete/Restated – Parks and Recreation Committee in conjunction with Staff develop a 
scope of work for the design of the pool (L-Shape), come back with a scope of work for a design (within the 
dollar amounts discussed) and once complete bring back to the Board for that approval, have an estimated 
cost; Parks and Recreation Committee and Staff will bring back to the Board what was presented from the 
designer that works within the budgeted amounts discussed this evening. 
There was discussion regarding the motion; twostep process/ bring back to the Board; 1) Approve the 
designer, 2) Board to decide if to approve the pool or not. The discussion continued regarding the Parks and 
Recreation Committee and Staff to work with a qualified design firm to prepare proposal and bring back to 
the Board.  Additional discussion regarding; pool location, best location for the pool, a Master Plan (very 
expensive) for the Community Center, and clarity regarding the motion and funds to be included. 
Legal Counsel Attebery:  Restated the process (three step); RFP to design the pool and an estimate/cost to 
prepare the designs necessary for an RFP, before contract is awarded, the motion would be to bring back 
the design contract with no money spent until the design contract is presented and take action for the design 
(rough estimate $65,000), if the Board decides to design the pool, spend the $65,000 to design the pool 
come back after the design, then go out for an RFP with delivery of bids with an exact amount/cost of the 
pool. 
 

Agenda Item C-1



 
 

Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 
Meeting Minutes for April 3, 2019 - Pg.3 

 

 
There was additional discussion regarding the process and the motion. 
General Manager Davies – Clarified the stated motion; Solicit potential scope of work from 2 or 3 pool design 
companies, bring back to the Parks and Recreation Committee, then the Parks and Recreation Committee 
will recommend to the Board to possibly move forward based on the scope of work and cost to only design a 
pool that would fall in the budget. 
Director Leete – Stated that is the motion 
Vote: Motion Carried – AYES: 5, NOES: 0 
   

H. MANAGER’S REPORT 
Water and Wastewater Manager Koehne – Provided an update regarding March 2019 water reduction 52% 
lower than 2013. 

 
I. DIRECTORS’ REPORTS  

1. Standing Committee Reports. 
a. Water and Wastewater Committee Meeting (Committee Members Bill Pease and Bill Mayer) 

March 21, 2019. Director Pease provided the details of the Water and Wastewater Committee 
meeting; NPDES Permit, Ultraviolet Light, and the Denitrification Projects.  There was discussion 
regarding the Denitrification Project. 

b. Special Finance Committee Meeting (Committee Members Robert Leete and Bill Mayer)   
March 25, 2019. Director Leete provided the details from the Special Finance Committee 
meeting related to the pool project. 

2. Other Reportable Items. 
 
J. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 None. 
 
K. CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED  

1. East Contra Costa Fire Protection District Finance Committee meeting minutes for February 19, 2019. 
  

L. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 None. 
 
M. ADJOURNMENT     

1. The meeting adjourned at 8:30 p.m. to the next regular meeting of April 17, 2019 beginning at 7:00 p.m. 
at the Community Center located at 1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard.  

 
 
//cmc – 04-09-19 
http://www.todb.ca.gov/agendas-minutes 
 
 

Agenda Item C-1

http://www.todb.ca.gov/agendas-minutes


 
 

 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

April 17, 2019 

 
Prepared By:   Dina Breitstein, Finance Manager & Lesley Marable, Accountant 
Submitted By:    Michael R. Davies, General Manager  

 
Agenda Title 
 
Approve Register of District Invoices. 
 
 
Recommended Action 
 
Staff recommends that the Board approve the listed invoices for payment. 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
District invoices are paid on a regular basis, and must obtain Board authorization prior to payment.  Staff recommends  
Board authorization in order that the District can continue to pay warrants in a timely manner. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 

Amount Requested  $ 758,503.35 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  Yes   (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #    See listing of invoices.  Category:  Operating Expenses and Capital Improvements        
 

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
 
 
 
Attachments 
 
Request For Authorization to Pay Invoices for the Town of Discovery Bay CSD  2018/2019. 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM: C-2 

Cinderella
Stamp



U.S. Bank $426,307.32

Veolia Water North America $135,058.44

Lighthouse Electrical, Inc. $71,885.14

Town of Discovery Bay CSD $61,557.94

CaliforniaChoice Benefit Admin $14,554.28

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System $13,867.55

Badger Meter $5,568.73

Stantec Consulting Services Inc $4,880.00

RoDon Corporation $4,549.50

Mt. Diablo Resource Recovery $3,792.26

Liberty Union High School District $2,773.80

Freedom Mailing Service, Inc $2,687.01

Du-All Safety $1,700.00

Matrix Trust $840.90

Karina Dugand $804.00

Verizon Wireless $763.24

Univar $749.11

Tree West $720.00

Robert Leete $690.00

William Mayer $690.00

Kevin Graves $565.20

Bryon Gutow $556.20

Comcast $474.48

Bill Pease $460.00

Brentwood Ace Hardware $371.60

ReliaStar Life Insurance Company $275.00

UPS $211.44

Denalect Alarm Company $202.41

Department of Justice $196.00

Smeared Paint $150.00

SDRMA $133.42

UniFrist Corporation $128.01

Office Depot $117.60

Michael Davies $75.76

Lucia Peters $67.50

Cintas $55.38

Water Utility Customer $24.13

$758,503.35

                               For The Meeting On April 17, 2019

                             Town of Discovery Bay CSD

                             For Fiscal Year’s 7/18 - 6/19

Agenda Item C-2



 
 

 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

April 17, 2019 

 
Prepared By:   Sue Heinl, Executive Assistant 
Submitted By:    Michael R. Davies, General Manager  

 
Agenda Title 
 
Accept Draft Annual Water Quality Report/Consumer Confidence Report - Reporting year 2018. 
 
 
Recommended Action 
 
Accept the Annual Water Quality Report/Consumer Confidence Report - Reporting year 2018. 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The preparation of a Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) is required by Health & Safety Code §116470 and California 
Code of Regulations, Title 22, Article 20.  In 1996, Congress amended the Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA), adding a 
requirement that water systems deliver to their customers a brief Annual Water Quality Report. 
 
The attached draft Annual Water Quality/Consumer Confidence Report for 2018 includes information on the Town’s 
source water, levels of any detected contaminants, and compliance with drinking water regulations (including monitoring 
requirements), along with some educational information.  We are pleased to highlight that the Town’s reporting levels 
are all within normal parameters and there are no reportable violations. 
 
In addition to providing our customers with mandated water quality reporting, the Annual Water Quality/Consumer 
Confidence Report also provides helpful water use information with the article, “Making Water Conservation a California 
Way of Life.”  
 
Once accepted by the Board, the Annual Water Quality/Consumer Confidence Report will be bulk printed and mailed to 
our residential and commercial water customers for delivery on or before July 1, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
 
 
 
Attachments 
 
Draft Annual Water Quality Report/Consumer Confidence Report - Reporting year 2018. 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM: C-3 

Cinderella
Stamp



DRAFT

Agenda Item C-3



DRAFT

Agenda Item C-3



DRAFT

Agenda Item C-3



DRAFT

Agenda Item C-3



 

 
 

 

 

Town of Discovery Bay  
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

April 17, 2019 

 

Prepared By: Michael R. Davies, General Manager  
Submitted By: Michael R. Davies, General Manager  
 
 
Agenda Title 
 

Approve Board President to Sign and Submit a Letter of Opposition to Senate Bill 13. 
 
 
Recommended Action 
 

Authorize the Board President to sign and submit a letter of opposition to Senate Bill 13. 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
Senator Bob Wieckowski (D-Fremont) is authoring Senate Bill 13, which would prohibit impact fees on accessory dwelling 
units (ADUs) smaller than 750 square feet and significantly limit the impact fees that can be charged for larger ADUs. 
Given that revenue for local governments is tightly restricted by the California Constitution, fees are one of the few ways 
special districts can offset the indirect costs of growth. Impact fees are critical for park, fire protection, and other types of 
districts trying to recoup their costs for providing infrastructure and services to new ADU developments.  
New restrictions on impact fees could not come at a more critical time for the bottom line of fire services already stretched 
thin by California’s ever more dangerous fire season. Impact fees pay for increasing firefighting capacity, acquiring new 
personnel, facilities, vehicles, and equipment to maintain service levels and protect the lives and property within new 
structures, including ADUs. With substantial increases in neighborhood density, comes the need to increase crews and 
purchase additional fire response apparatus. 
Recreation and park districts are also dependent on impact fees to establish new parks as neighborhoods grow. Park fees 
were implemented during the post war boom to ensure that all California neighborhoods would have access to parks and 
open space. Some park districts report being dependent on Quimby and park development fees for up to three quarters of 
all their revenue. 
Impact fees are an important tool for special districts to provide services, infrastructure, and quality of life for local 
communities. The impact fee caps in SB 13 will reduce local government funding for quality of life investments. 
SB 13 is substantially similar to SB 831 (Wieckowski), which CSDA members strongly opposed in 2018. SB 831 was 
ultimately stopped due to the overwhelming opposition from special districts. 
CSDA has taken an oppose position on SB 13. The bill has already passed the Senate Housing Committee and will be 
heard in Senate Governance and Finance Committee in April. 
 
To read the Bill text: http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200SB13 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
 
 
 
Attachments 
 
Letter of Opposition to SB 13. 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM: C-4 

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200SB13
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180SB831
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200SB13
Cinderella
Stamp



 

 
1800 Willow Lake Road • Discovery Bay • CA • 94505-9376 

Telephone • 925.634.1131 • Fax • 925.513.2705 
www.todb.ca.gov 

 

  
 

   
 
 
April 17, 2019 
 
 
 
The Honorable Bob Wieckowski 
California State Assembly 
State Capitol 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
 
RE: Senate Bill 13 (Wieckowski) – Oppose [As Amended March 11, 2019] 
 
Dear Senator Wieckowski: 
 
The Discovery Bay Community Services District is respectfully opposed to Senate Bill 13. SB 13 prohibits 
impact fees on Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs) smaller than 750 square feet and significantly limits the impact 
fees that may be charged to larger ADUs. The Discovery Bay Community Services District provides water, 
wastewater, lighting, landscaping, parks and recreation services to over 15,000 residents. 
 
Given that revenue for local governments is tightly restricted by the California Constitution, fees are one of the 
few ways that special districts can offset the indirect costs of growth.  Impact fees are critical for park, fire 
protection, and other types of districts trying to recoup their costs for providing infrastructure and services to 
new accessory dwelling unit developments. 
 
Impact fees are an important tool for special districts to provide services, infrastructure, and quality of life for 
local communities. The impact fee caps in SB 13 will reduce local government funding and quality of life 
investments. For these reasons, the Discovery Bay Community Services District respectfully opposes SB 13 
unless it is amended.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Bill Mayer, President of the Board of Directors 
Town of Discovery Bay  
 
 
 
CC: Francisco Montes, Office of Senator Bob Wieckowski [francisco.montes@sen.ca.gov] 
  Assembly Member Jim Frazier 
  Senator Steven Glazer 
  Rylan Gervase, Legislative Representative, California Special Districts Association [advocacy@csda.net] 
 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

 

President – Bill Mayer • Vice-President – Bill Pease • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Bryon Gutow 
 

 

SDLF Gold-Level of Governance 

Agenda Item C-4

http://www.todb.ca.gov/


TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

PROCLAMATION NO. 19-01 

 

  

 WHEREAS, Virgil Koehne as a young man lived, worked and played on the great 

island of Oahu; and 

  

 WHEREAS, Virgil as an adult voyaged across the Pacific Ocean to begin employment 

as a computer operator in AT&T’s Data Center in California; and 

 

 WHEREAS, during his tenure with AT&T, Virgil’s true talent as a problem solver 

and innovator promoted him through the company; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Virgil is a devoted husband to his wife, Renee, and a supportive father 

and grandfather to three children and three grandchildren; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Virgil’s energy and selfless passion for helping others became a lifelong 

devotion to volunteerism and community service; and 

 

WHEREAS, upon retirement from AT&T Virgil desired to live, work and play in 

Discovery Bay, and so he did; and 

 

WHEREAS, Virgil was on the first Board of Directors of Discovery Bay Community 

Services District (“District”) in 1998 as a “Founding Father” of District formation; and 

 

WHEREAS, Virgil became the first employee of the District, and began his duties 

with only a truck and a hammer; and 

 

WHEREAS, he served the District as a General Manager and as a Water and 

Wastewater Manager with over 20 years of distinction and accomplishments; and 

 

WHEREAS, Virgil is retiring from the District effective April 30, 2019, and has 

announced that from time to time he will voyage the Pacific Ocean and live, volunteer and 

play on San Juan Island. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that we, the Board of Directors of the 

Town of Discovery Bay, hereby approve this proclamation thanking and honoring VIRGIL 

KOEHNE for his over twenty years of devoted service to this District and to the people of 

Discovery Bay ~ MAHALO! 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 17
th

 day of April 2019. 

 

 

________________________________   ________________________________ 

President Bill Mayer      Vice-President Bill Pease 

 

________________________________   ________________________________ 

Director Kevin Graves      Director Robert Leete 

  

________________________________     

Director Bryon Gutow       

Agenda Item C-5



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 1  

Town of Discovery Bay, CA  

Water & Wastewater 
 

 

 

 

 MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT 
March 2019 

 
 

3503 Days of Safe Operations 

172,458 worked hours without a recordable incident  

 
 
 
 

TRAINING: 

 

 Safety 

o West Monthly Regional Safety Webinar 

o LoTo 

 

 

 

 Operation 

o None this month 

 

 
 
 
 

REPORTS SUBMITTED TO REGULATORY AGENCIES: 

 

 Monthly Discharge Monitoring Report (DMR) 

 Monthly electronic State Monitoring Report (eSMR) 

 Monthly Coliform Report, State Water Board (DDW) 

 Annual Bio-solids report (EPA) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item E-1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 2  

 

 

WATER SERVICES 
 

 

 

Groundwater Well:  

 1B - Active  

 2 – Under rehab 

 4 – Under rehab 

 5B - Active (Standby only) 

 6 – Active 

 7 - Active 

 

 

 

 

2018 Monthly Water Production Table (MG):  

 

 

January February March  April May June 

37 37 40    

July August September October November December 

      

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

0

50

100

150

200

APR MAY JUNE JULY AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR

M
ill

io
n

 G
al

lo
n

s 

 Water Production  

2013

Last 12 month

Agenda Item E-1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 3  

 

 

Bacteriological Test Results: 
 

Routine Bacteria  

Samples Collected 
No. Total Coliform 

Positives 

No. Fecal/E. coli 

Positives 

Brown Water  

Calls 

Fire Hydrant  

Flushing 

 16 

 

 0  0  0  0 

 

WASTEWATER SERVICE 
 

 

 

Wastewater Laboratory Analysis 

*New TSS Limit went into effect  

 

 

 

 

     WW Effluent 

Parameter 

 

Permit 

Limits 

 

Feb 

Lab Data 

 

Mar 

Lab Data 

Flow, MG Effluent, monthly total -------------------- 35 34 

Flow,  MG Daily Influent Flow, avg. N/A 1.5 1.3 

Flow,  MG Daily Discharge Flow, avg.  2.35  1.3 1.1 

Effluent BOD5, lbs/d, monthly avg. 350 11 11 

Effluent TSS, lbs/d, monthly avg. 200* 8 10 

Effluent BOD5, mg/L, monthly avg. 20 1 1 

Effluent TSS, mg/L, monthly avg. 10* 1 1 

Total Coli form 7 day Median Max 23 ND ND 

Total Coli form Daily Maximum 240 79 2 

% Removal  BOD5, monthly avg. 85% min. 99% 99% 

% Removal, TSS, monthly avg. 85% min. 99% 99% 

Electrical Conductivity, umhos/cm annual avg. 2100 2170 2200 

Agenda Item E-1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 4  

 

National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES): 

 
NPDES Related  

Excursions 

Permit Parameter 

 

NPDES Parameter 

 Limit 

 Actual Parameter 

Result 

 0  N/A  N/A  N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COLLECTION 
 
Lift Station Status: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Performed weekly lift station inspections 

 

Sewer System: 

 

 Continue collection sanitary sewer line assessment  

 Flushed/CCTV will be performed after assessment 

 Manhole & covers will be inspected during assessment.  

 

 

 

 

# of Active 

Lift Stations 
# of Inactive 

Lift Stations        SSO 
Wastewater 

Received (MG) 

 15  0  0  39 

Agenda Item E-1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 5  

MAINTENANCE 
  

 

 

 Preventive and Corrective: 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

Call & Emergency Response 

 

Call Outs                                       Emergencies  

   6     0 

 

Regular Hours   Overtime 

  1440   26 

 

TERMS 

Agenda Item E-1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 6  

 

WWTP    WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 

 

WTP   WATER TREAMENT PLANT 

 

WL   WILLOW LAKE 

 

NP   NEWPORT  

 

VFD   VARIABLE FREQUENCY DRIVE 

 

WO   WORK ORDER 

 

PLC   PROGRAMMABLE LOGIC CONTROLLER 

 

L/S   LIFT STATION 

 

SSO                                SANITARY SEWER OVERFLOW 

 

BOD   BIOLOGICAL OXYGEN DEMAND 

 

TSS   TOTAL SUSPENDED SOLIDS 

 

MGD   MILLION GALLONS PER DAY 

 

mg/l   MILLIGRAMS PER LITRE 

 

CCTV   CLOSED CIRCUIT TELEVISION 

 

PPM   PARTS PER MILLION 

 

RAS   RETURN ACTIVATED SLUDGE 

 

WAS   WATSE ACTIVATED SLUDGE 

 

UV                                   ULTRAVIOLET LIGHT 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item E-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



What Will Your Community Be in 2040?
Join a conversation about the future of your community and of Contra Costa County. 
The County is updating its General Plan and Zoning Code – a project called “Envision 
Contra Costa 2040” – setting a path for the future of conservation and development in 
the unincorporated county for the next twenty years. To kick off this process, the County 
is hosting a series of Community Meetings to listen to your ideas about the future of your 
community and issues that need to be addressed, and to help everyone understand the role and 
importance of these plans and the update process.

Discovery Bay Residents....

Location: 
Discovery Bay Community Center

1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard
Discovery Bay, CA 94505

Date: Wednesday, April 24th 2019
Time: 6:00 PM

We Want to Hear From You!
Discovery Bay Community Meeting #1

For more information and to share your ideas online, visit: 
envisioncontracosta2040.org

1601 Discovery 
Bay Boulevard

Agenda Item J-1



Agenda Item K-1



Agenda Item K-1



Agenda Item K-1



Agenda Item K-1



Agenda Item K-2



Agenda Item K-2



Agenda Item K-2



Agenda Item K-2



Discovery Bay 
P-6 
Citizen Advisory 
Committee 

 
 
 

The Discovery Bay P-6 Citizen Advisory Committee serves as an advisory body to the 
Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors and the Office of the Sheriff. 

This meeting record is provided pursuant to Better Government Ordinance 95-6, Article 25-2.205(d) of the Contra Costa 
County Ordinance Code. 

1 

Lesley Belcher, Chair 
 

Office of Supervisor Diane Burgis 
Contact: Lea Castleberry 

3361 Walnut Blvd., Suite 140 
Brentwood, CA 94513 

 
Respectfully submitted by:  

Deputy Chief of Staff, Lea Castleberry 

 
Draft Record of Actions 

6:00 p.m. 
January 9, 2019 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Chair Belcher, Vice Chair Kane, Committee Member Mankin and Committee Member Selby 
MEMBERS ABSENT: None 
PRESENTATION OF COLORS: Led by Chair Belcher 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Motion to approve agenda as presented made by Vice Chair Kane. Second made by Committee 
Member Selby. Motion Carried 4-0. AYES: Belcher, Kane, Mankin and Selby 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: Terry Mahoney – Thank you to the Sheriff’s Department for the Speed Sign Trailer.  
OFFICE OF THE SHERIFF – Monthly Calls for Service: Lt. Foley, Crime Prevention Specialist provided the monthly 
activity report for the months of October, November and December.  
CONSENT ITEMS: 
a. Approval of Record of Actions for October 24, 2018: Motion to accept the Record of Actions as presented made by 

Committee Member Mankin. Second made by Vice Chair Kane. Motion carried 4-0. Belcher, Kane, Mankin and Selby.  
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION: 
a. Update on Discovery Bay License Plate Readers: Lt. Foley reported they are still working on approvals through Caltrans 

to place License Plate Readers on their poles. The Sheriff’s Department recently applied for an encroachment permit and 
exemption request to the State. They are hopeful the process will move forward and be able to start installation by this 
Summer.   

b. Review and Approve the 2019 Workplan: Motion to approve as presented made by Committee Member Mankin. Second 
made by Vice Chair Kane. Motion carried 4-0. Belcher, Kane, Mankin and Selby. 

c. Rotation of Chair and Vice Chair: Motion to nominate Joe Selby as Chair and Lesley Belcher as Vice Chair made by 
Richard Kane. Second made by Committee Member Mankin. Motion carried 4-0. Belcher, Kane, Mankin and Selby. 

 
CORRESPONDENCE/ANNOUNCEMENTS:  
a. R-12/04/18 Letter from Charles W. Helfrick 
b. S-12/06/18 Letter from Supervisor Diane Burgis to Charles W. Helfrick 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
ADJOURMENT 
There being no further business before the Discovery Bay P-6 Citizen Advisory Committee, Chair Belcher adjourned the 
meeting at 6:29pm. The next regularly scheduled Discovery Bay P-6 Citizen Advisory Committee meeting on April 10, 2019 at 
6:00p.m. to be held at the Discovery Bay Community Center, 1800 Willow Lake Road, Discovery Bay, CA 94505.  

Agenda Item K-3



 

   
Minutes March 13, 2019 

Page 1 of 5 

    
  

15391729.1  

 

EAST CONTRA COSTA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
 
 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Adam Langro    Carrie Nash     Brian Oftedal      Stephen Smith     Joe Young 

                              President           Vice President 
 

 

 

Meeting Minutes 
 Board of Directors Regular Meeting 

  
Wednesday, March 13, 2019  

1. Call to Order: (6:34 pm)  

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance: (6:34 pm)  

  Chief Helmick led the Pledge of Allegiance  
 

3. Roll Call: (6:35 pm) 
 

Directors Present: Langro, Nash, Oftedal, Smith, Young 

Directors Absent:   

4. Presentations: (6:35 pm) 

Battalion Chief Jeff Burris present a recognition to Sam Bradley & Associates for   
their years of service they provided to the District for EMS Training.  

5. Public Comment: (6:36 pm) 

There were no (0) Public Speakers. 

6. Consent Calendar: (6:36 pm) 

a) Approve Minutes of February 13, 2019 Board of Directors Meeting 

5

Agenda Item K-4



 

 
  

Minutes March 13, 2019 
Page 2 of 5 

 
  
  

15391729.1  

 

b) Approve Investment Policy for Other Post-Employment Benefits 
Trust Account 

Motion by: Director Young to approve Consent Calendar Items: a, b  
Second by: Director Nash 
Vote Carried: 5:0:0 
Ayes: Langro (b only), Nash, Oftedal, Smith, Young 
Noes: 
Abstained:  Langro (a only) 

  Absent: 

Item 10. a was taken out of order 

10. Report of the Fire Chief / Informational Staff Reports: (6:38 pm)  

a) Presentation and Discussion on Potential Partnership with Ironhouse 
Sanitation District for New Regional Training Facilities and Related Next 
Steps 

Chief Helmick and Ironhouse Sanitation District General Manager Chad 
Davidson made a presentation, responded to questions and received 
input from the Board. 

There were no (0) Public Speakers. 

 

7. Finance Committee Report:  

a.) Mid-Year Operating Budget Amendment for Strategic Plan 
Implementation Action Plan: (7:14 pm) 

There were no (0) Public Speakers. 

 
Motion by: Vice President Smith to approve Mid-Year Operating Budget 
Amendment for Strategic Plan Implementation Action Plan  
Second by: Director Young 
Vote Carried: 5:0:0 
Ayes: Langro, Nash, Oftedal, Smith, Young 
Noes: 
Abstained:    
Absent: 

6

Agenda Item K-4



 

 
  

Minutes March 13, 2019 
Page 3 of 5 

 
  
  

15391729.1  

b.) Approve Contract with NBS Government Finance Group for Development 
Impact Fee, Community Facilities District Formation and User Fee 
Studies: (7:19 pm)   

There were no (0) Public Speakers. 

 
Motion by: Director Young to approve a contract with NBS Government 
Finance Group for Development Impact Fee, Community Facilities 
District Formation and User Fee Studies  
Second by: Vice President Smith 
Vote Carried: 5:0:0 
Ayes: Langro, Nash, Oftedal, Smith, Young 
Noes: 
Abstained:    
Absent: 

c) Approve Contract with Clifford Moss for Public Education & Outreach 
Services: (7:27 pm) 

There was one (1) Public Speaker – Bryan Scott 
 
Motion by: Director Young to approve a contract with Clifford Moss for 
Public Education & Outreach Services  
Second by: Director Nash 
Vote Carried: 4:1:0 
Ayes: Nash, Oftedal, Smith, Young 
Noes: Langro 
Abstained:    
Absent: 

d) Establish a Pension Rate Stabilization Fund and Select an Investment 
Strategy: (7:50 pm) 

There were no (0) Public Speakers. 

 
Motion by: Director Young to Establish a Pension Rate Stabilization 
Fund and Select the "Conservative" Investment Strategy  
Second by: Director Langro 
Vote Carried: 5:0:0 
Ayes: Langro, Nash, Oftedal, Smith, Young 
Noes:   
Abstained:    
Absent: 

8. Strategic Planning Ad Hoc Committee Report: (7:57 pm) 

7

Agenda Item K-4



 

 
  

Minutes March 13, 2019 
Page 4 of 5 

 
  
  

15391729.1  

 
9. Legislative Committee Ad Hoc Committee Report: (8:02 pm) 

10. Report of the Fire Chief / Informational Staff Reports: (8:06pm)  

b) Grants Update  - Battalion Chief Macumber 

c) Station 55 Update – Business Services Manager Regina Rubier 

d) Prevention Update  - Battalion Chief Macumber 

e) Operational Update for February 2019 - Battalion Chief Macumber 

f) Public Outreach & Education Activities Update - Battalion Chief 
Macumber 

Chief Helmick also provided an update on the Fire Marshal recruitment 
process. 

11. Board Reports and Requests: (8:42 pm) 

Director Smith attended the three (3) Brentwood City Council Meetings in 
February, as well as the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District and Board of 
Supervisors meeting on March 12, 2019. 

Director Langro attended the Oakley City Council meeting. 

Director Langro made two requests: 

Director Langro stated that the District should be prepared to take a position on 
the City of Brentwood entertaining a proposal to build a new Senior Living 
Community on the west side of the city, which would be comprised of ~2400 new 
units.  Director Langro further requested that staff analyze potential property tax 
transfer impacts.  Chief Helmick stated that he would report on this item at the 
next Board of Directors meeting on April 10, 2019. 

Director Langro also requested that the Legislative Update provide information on 
bills that impact property taxes, e.g., those that propose new property tax 
exemptions. 

8

Agenda Item K-4



 

 
  

Minutes March 13, 2019 
Page 5 of 5 

 
  
  

15391729.1  

12. Date and Place of Next Meeting: Wednesday, April 10, 2019 6:30 P.M. at 
Brentwood City Council Chambers, 150 City Park Way, Brentwood: (8:51 pm) 

13. Adjourn: (8:51 pm) 

9

Agenda Item K-4


	2019-04-17 Agenda Meeting Cover Sheet.pdf
	2019-04-17 Agenda REVISED BY LEGAL.pdf
	C-1 2019-04-03 DRAFT Minutes.pdf
	C-2-1 Staff Report Approve Register of District Invoices.pdf
	C-2-2 Copy of RFA 041719 Combined.pdf
	C-3-1 DRAFT - Staff Report Accept Draft Annual CCR.pdf
	C-3-2 DRAFT CCR - 04-17-2019 Board Mtg..pdf
	C-4-1 Staff Report - Opposition Letter to SB 13.pdf
	C-4-2 SB 13 Opposition Letter.pdf
	C-5 FINAL Proc for Virgil Retirement-Mike 04-09-2019.pdf
	E-1 Veolia Report Month of March 2019.pdf
	F-1 June 30 2018 - Draft Financial Statements-1.pdf
	J-1 Envision CC 2040 Project - CCC General Plan&Zoning Code Update.pdf
	K-1 AAC meeting minutes 02-14-2019.pdf
	K-2 AAC meeting minutes 03-14-2019.pdf
	K-3 DB P6 CAC DRAFT minutes 01-09-2019.pdf
	K-4 ECCFPD meeting minutes 03-15-2019.pdf
	Board of Directors Regular Meeting Agenda
	Item 9a. - Cover Page
	Item 9a. - March 13 2019 Board Minutes.pdf
	Item 8a. - Cover Page
	Item 8a. - Adoption of Legislative Advocacy Policy.pdf
	Item 8a. - Board Policy No. 280 Legislative Advocacy.pdf
	Item 8b. - Cover Page
	Item 8b. - March Legislative Report.pdf
	Item 12a. - Cover Page
	Item 12a. - March Grants Report.pdf
	Item 12b. - Cover Page
	Item 12c. - Cover Page
	Item 12c. - March Prevention Report.pdf
	Item 12d. - Cover Page
	Item 12d. - March Operational Report.pdf
	Item 12e. - Cover Page
	Item 12e. - March Public Relations Report.pdf
	Item 12f. - Cover Page


